
(next page)→ 

Sussex County Board of Supervisors Rescheduled Meeting 
Thursday, July 22, 2021 – 6 pm 

General District Courtroom – Sussex Judicial Center 
15098 Courthouse Road, Sussex VA 23884 

==================================================================== 
 
1. Commencement 
1.01 Call to Order/Determine Quorum 
1.02 The Invocation 
1.03 The Pledge of Allegiance 
1.04 Agenda Amendment(s) 
1.05 Approval of Regular Agenda 
 
2. Approval of Consent Agenda 
2.01 Approval of Minutes:  May 3 Joint BOS and Planning, May 20, 2021 Regular and June 2, 

2021 Special Meeting 
2.02 Warrants and Vouchers 
2.03 Treasurer’s Report – for information only  
2.04 Financial Update – for information only 
2.05 Public Works Department Reports – for information only 
2.06 Public Safety Department Report – for information only 
2.07 Planning Department Report – for information only 
2.08 Sheriff’s Department – for information only 
2.09 Social Services Department – for information only 
2.10 District Court COVID-19 Hazard Pay 
2.11 Cabin Point CUP Fire and Rescue Payment 
 
3. Recognitions/Awards/Presentation 
3.01 RECOGNITION:  Resolution in Recognizing the Late Alice W. Jones 
3.02 Retirement of Sheriff’s Department K-9 Zorro 
3.03 Introduction of New Staff (Economic Developer/Animal Services Director/Solid Waste 

Manager) 
3.04 Transition to Department of Social Services Advisory Board – Mr. Kevin Massengill, 

Dinwiddie County Administrator 
3.05 Virginia Telecommunication Initiative Broadband Grant Opportunity – Mr. Casey Logan, 

Prince George Electric Cooperative 
 
4. Public Hearing – none  
 
5. Appointments – none 
 
6. Action Items  
6.01 RFP #2021-04 Public Safety Property/Accident & Health Insurance – Mr. Reid Foster 
6.02 IPR Loan Forgiveness  
 
7. Citizens’ Comments  



 
8. Unfinished Business – none  
 
9. New Business 
9.01 Sheriff’s Department Five Percent Salary Increase Calculation Concerns 
 
10. Board Members Comments 
10.01 Blackwater District 
10.02 Courthouse District 
10.03 Henry District 
10.04 Stony Creek District 
10.05 Wakefield District 
10.06 Waverly District 
 
11. Closed Session 
11.01  Convene to Closed Session  

a. Discussion concerning a prospective business or industry or the expansion of an 
existing business or industry where no previous announcement has been made of the 
business' or industry's interest in locating or expanding its facilities in the community, 
pursuant to applicable Va. Code Section 2.2-3711(A)5, economic development 

11.02  Reconvene to Open Session  
11.03  Certification  
11.04  Action Resulting from Closed Session (if any) 
 
12. Recess/Adjournment  
12.01 Recess/Adjournment 
12.02 Next Regular Meeting, August 19, 2021 @ 6 p.m. 



 

1 
 

Minutes of the  
SUSSEX COUNTY JOINT PUBLIC HEARING OF THE PLANNING 

COMMISSION AND THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
Monday, May 3, 2020 at 6:00 P. M. 

Sussex Central Elementary School, gymnasium 
21392 Sussex Drive 

Stony Creek, VA 23882 
 

PLANNING COMMISSIONERS PRESENT 
J. Lafayette Edmond, Chair 

Terry Massenburg, Vice Chair 
Frank Irving 
Roger King 

Dennis P. Mason 
Robert Young, Jr. 
Rudolph Shands 
Brenda Burgess 

Kevin Bracy 
Andrew Mayes 

 
 

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS PRESENT 
Susan B. Seward, Chair 

Wayne O. Jones, Vice Chairman (Virtually) 
C. Eric Fly, Sr. 

Marian D. Johnson 
Rufus E. Tyler, Sr. 

 
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS ABSENT 

Debbie P. Jones 
Steve White, Tie Breaker 

 
 
 

STAFF PRESENT 
Richard Douglas, County Administrator 

Beverly Walkup, Director of Planner 
Michael Poarch, Sussex County Planner 

 



 

2 
 

CALL TO ORDER: 

COMMISSIONER EDMOND, called the Planning Commission Meeting to order. 

SUPERVISOR SEWARD, called the Board of Supervisors Meeting to order. 

 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE/MOMENT OF SILENCE: 

Pledge of Allegiance and Moment of Silence was led by SUPERVISOR FLY 

 

ADOPTION OF AGENDA AMENDMENTS: 

ON MOTION OF COMMISSIONER BRACY, seconded by COMMISSIONER IRVING and carried: 

RESOLVED that the agenda for the May 3, 2021 meeting of the Sussex County Planning 

Commission is hereby adopted subject to:  1) deferral of Item (7)(b) Zoning Amendment 

#2021-02 for Forefront Power; and 2) add to the agenda the election of officers for the 

Planning Commission. 

Voting aye: Commissioners Edmond, Irving, King, Burgess, Bracy, Mayes Mason, Massenburg, 

Young, and Shands. 

Voting nay:  None 

 

ON MOTION OF SUPERVISOR SEWARD and carried: RESOLVED that the agenda for the May 3, 

2021 meeting of the Sussex County Planning Commission is hereby adopted subject to:  1) 

deferral of Zoning Amendment #2021-02, Forefront Power; and 2) add to the agenda the 

election of officers for the Planning Commission. 

Voting aye: Supervisor Seward, Jones, Fly, Johnson, Tyler 

Voting nay:  None 

 

MOTION TO ENTER PUBLIC HEARINGS: 

ON MOTION OF COMMISSIONER EDMOND, no one seconded and carried: RESOLVED that the 

meeting move into public hearings. 

Voting aye: Commissioners Edmond, Irving, King, Burgess, Bracy, Mayes Mason, Massenburg, 

Young, and Shands 

Voting nay:  None 



 

3 
 

 

ON MOTION OF SUPERVISOR SEWARD, no one seconded and carried: RESOLVED that the 

meeting move into public hearings. 

Voting aye: Supervisor Seward, Jones, Fly, Johnson, Tyler 

Voting nay:  None 

 

ENTER Public Hearing Item (7)(a) Zoning Amendment #2021-01,  Mike’s Auto & Truck 

Repair, LLC, applicant 

 
1) STAFF REPORT PRESENTATION 

Beverly Walkup, Director of Planning, presented a brief summary of the application and 

information from the staff report. Michael Ward, the applicant, appeared before the Planning 

Commission and Board of Supervisors. Mr. Ward explained that he purchased the property 

and began clearing it, but was advised by staff that he would need to rezone the property for 

the intended use as a auto and truck repair shop.  

 

In summary, the applicant seeks to rezone tax parcel number 147-A-3 containing 1.07 acres 

from B-1, Limited Business to B-2, General Business to accommodate an auto and truck repair 

shop. 

 

ISSUES AND CONCERNS FROM THE COMMISSION 

• Noise buffers 

• Appearance of overnight car storage 

• Disposal of tires and fluids 

• Fencing 

 

COMMISSION’S ACTION ON PUBLIC HEARING ITEM (7)(a) Zoning Amendment #2021-01, 

Mike’s Auto & Truck Repair, LLC, applicant 



 

4 
 

ON MOTION OF COMMISSIONER EDMOND, seconded by COMMISSIONER KING and carried: 

RESOLVED that the Planning Commission forward Mike’s Auto & Truck Repair, LLC, Zoning 

Amendment #2021-01 to the Board of Supervisors for approval. 

Voting aye: Commissioners Edmond, Irving, King, Burgess, Bracy, Mayes Mason, Massenburg, 

Young, and Shands 

Voting nay:  None 

 

 

BOARD’S ACTION ON PUBLIC HEARING ITEM (7)(a) Zoning Amendment #2021-01, Mike’s 

Auto & Truck Repair, LLC, applicant 

ON MOTION OF SUPERVISOR SEWARD, seconded by SUPERVISOR TYLER and carried: 

RESOLVED that the Board of Supervisors approve Mike’s Auto & Truck Repair, LLC, Zoning 

Amendment #2021-01. 

Voting aye: Supervisor Seward, Jones, Fly, Johnson, Tyler 

Voting nay:  None 

 

ENTER Public Hearing Item (7)(c) Conditional Use Permit Application #2021-01, Shands 

Energy Center, LLC, applicant 

 
2) STAFF REPORT PRESENTATION 

Denise Nelson, Berkley Group Environmental Engineer, provided a brief summary of the 

application and referencing information from the staff report.  Andrew Foukal, CEO of East 

Point Energy, appeared before the Planning Commission and Board of Supervisors. Mr. Foukal 

explained the two amendments in the Conditional Use Permit in reference to the changes in 

extinguishing technology and the set of codes in which the project will abide by.   

 

In summary, the applicant seeks to amend condition 6(a) to add clarity to the required 

national and state codes that apply to the project, and condition 6(d) to add the word 

“manual” to the fire extinguishing technology requirement. 

 



 

5 
 

ISSUES AND CONCERNS FROM THE COMMISSION AND THE BOARD: 

• Will water be available on site? 

• Is decision for change in fire extinguishing technology is reflective of cost or caution 

for safety? 

• Affect to air quality if an explosion were to happen? 

• Duration of training for first responders; content within the training? 

• Possibility of fumes from a battery container exploding? 

• The stability of the communication system for monitoring 24/7? 

 

Following discussion  to resolve the issues raised by the Commission and Board, Supervisor 

Seward opened the public hearing to receive comments from the public. 

 

PUBLIC COMMENTS: 

Ricky Elder, Dominion Energy Business Development Manager, thanked The Commission and 

The Board for hearing and putting best practices in place. He mentioned Dominion’s value of 

safety, prudency, liability, and consistency. It’s the first time having these discussions with a 

locality. This can be the 1st project in the state and set an example for future projects.  

 

There being no further comments from the public, Supervisor Seward closed the public 

hearing. 

 

 

COMMISSION’S ACTION ON Public Hearing Item (7)(c) Conditional Use Permit Application 

#2021-01, Shands Energy 

ON MOTION OF COMMISSIONER EDMOND, no one seconded and carried: RESOLVED that the 

Planning Commission forward Conditional Use Permit Application #2021-01, Shands Energy 

to the Board of Supervisors for approval. 

Voting aye: Commissioners Edmond, Irving, King, Burgess, Bracy, Mayes Mason, Massenburg, 

Young, and Shands  

Voting nay:  None 



 

6 
 

 

BOARD’S ACTION ON PUBLIC HEARING ITEM (7)(c) Conditional Use Permit Application 

#2021-01, Shands Energy Center, LLC 

ON MOTION OF SUPERVISOR SEWARD and carried: RESOLVED that the Board of Supervisors 

approve Shands Energy Center, LLC, Conditional Use Permit Application. 

Voting aye: Supervisor Seward, Jones, Fly, Johnson, Tyler 

Voting nay:  None 

 

MOTION TO ENTER INTO ELECTION OF OFFICERS FOR THE PLANNING COMMISSION:  

ON MOTION OF COMMISSIONER EDMOND, seconded by COMMISSIONER BRACY and carried: 

RESOLVED that the Planning Commission moves into election of officers. 

 

ELECTION OF OFFICERS FOR THE PLANNING COMMISSION  

Ms. Walkup acting for Chairman Edmond called for nominations for Chairman.  

COMMISSIONER BRACY nominated Commissioner Massenburg.  There being no further 

nominations for Chairman, Ms. Walkup closed the nominations. 

Voting Aye: Commissioners Edmond, Irving, King, Burgess, Bracy, Mayes Mason, Massenburg, 

Young, and Shands  

Voting Nay: None 

Chairman Massenburg called for nominations for Vice Chairman.  COMMISSIONER MASON 

nominated Commissioner Edmond.  There being no further nominations for Chairman, Ms. 

Massenburg closed the nominations. 

Voting Aye: Commissioners Edmond, Irving, King, Burgess, Bracy, Mayes Mason, Massenburg, 

Young, and Shands  

Voting Nay: None 

 

ADJOURNMENT – The meeting adjourned at 7:40 P. M. 

ON THE MOTION OF COMMISSIONER EDMOND, seconded by COMMISSIONER KING and 

carried:  RESOLVED that the Sussex County Planning Commission is hereby adjourned. 



 

7 
 

Voting aye:  Commissioners Edmond, Irving, King, Burgess, Bracy, Mayes Mason, Massenburg, 

Young, and Shands 

Voting nay:  None 

 

ON THE MOTION OF SUPERVISOR JOHNSON, seconded by SUPERVISOR TYLER and carried:  

RESOLVED that the Sussex County Board of Supervisors meeting is hereby adjourned. 

Voting aye:  Supervisor Seward, Jones, Fly, Johnson, Tyler 

Voting nay:  None 

 

 

Submitted by:  Michael Poarch 

Approved by PC: May 3, 2021 

 

 

 

 

 

 



  
 

1 | Page – Minutes of May 20, 2021 Meeting of Board of Supervisors 
 
 

At a Regular Meeting of the  
Sussex County Board of Supervisors 

Thursday, May 20, 2021 at 6 pm 
 
 

BOARD MEMBERS PRESENT 
Marian D. Johnson  
Debbie P. Jones 
Wayne O. Jones 
Susan M. Seward 
Rufus E. Tyler, Sr. 
 
BOARD MEMBERS ABSENT 
C. Eric Fly, Sr. 
Steve White, Tie Breaker 
 
STAFF PRESENT: 
Richard Douglas, County Administrator 
Jeff Gore, County Attorney 
Ellen G. Boone, Commissioner of the Revenue 
John Broderick, Public Schools Director of Finance and Business Operations 
Deste J. Cox, Treasurer 
Brenda H. Drew, Housing Coordinator 
G. Reid Foster, Public Safety 
Jeff Gary, Director of Public Works 
Ernest Giles, Sheriff 
William Hagy, Director of Social Services 
Arthur Jarrett, Jr., Principal of the Public Schools 
Kelly W. Moore, Director of Finance 
Vincent L. Robertson, Commonwealth’s Attorney 
Adriene Stephenson, Public Schools, Director of Human Resources 
Shilton R. Butts, Assistant to the County Administrator/ 
 Deputy Clerk to the Board of Supervisors 
 
1.  Commencement  
 
1.01  Call to Order/Determine Quorum  
 
The May 20, 2021 regular meeting of the Sussex County Board of Supervisors was called to order 
by Chair Seward. 
 
1.02  The Invocation 
 
The Invocation was offered by Supervisor Tyler. 
 
1.03  The Pledge of Allegiance 



  
 

2 | Page – Minutes of May 20, 2021 Meeting of Board of Supervisors 
 
 

 
The Pledge of Allegiance was recited by all. 
 
1.04  Agenda Amendments 
 
County Administrator Douglas added under Item 3. Recognitions as Item 3.06  Ms. Lynette Alston, 
Indian Artifacts. 
 
1.05  Approval of Agenda 
 
ON MOTION OF SUPERVISOR TYLER, seconded by SUPERVISOR W. JONES and carried:  
RESOLVED that the Sussex County Board of Supervisors hereby approves the May 20, 2021 
regular agenda inclusive of adding under Item 3. Recognition as Item 3.06 Ms. Lynette Alston, 
Indian Artifacts.  All Board members present voted aye. 
 
It was announced by Chair Seward that Titan Mid-Atlantic was not on the agenda. 
  
2. Approval of Consent Agenda 
 
ON MOTION OF SUPERVISOR TYLER, seconded by SUPERVISOR W. JONES and carried:  
RESOLVED that the Sussex County Board of Supervisors hereby approves the Consent agenda 
inclusive of the following: (a) April 15, 2021 Regular meeting minutes; (b) the Approval of 
Warrants and Vouchers; (c) the Treasurer’s Report; (d) Financial Update; (e) Animal Services 
Report; (f) Housing Department Report; (g) Public Works Department Reports; (h) Public Safety 
Department Report; (i) Planning Department Report; (j) Sheriff’s Department Report; (k) Jail 
Roofing Contract; (l) Town of Waverly Police Agreement Budget Appropriation; and (m) 
Approval of RFP for Consolidated GIS Services.  All Board members present voted aye. 
 
3.  Recognitions/Awards/Presentation 
 
3.01 RECOGNITION:  Kelly W. Moore, Director of Finance  
 
The National Association of Counties (NACo) Professional Development Academy offered a 
100% scholarship for a 12-week, online leadership program led by General Colin Powell and 
dozens of public and private sector instructors.  The program provided best practices in leadership, 
organizational development and change management, negotiation and collaboration, effective 
business communication and delivering value within high performance management. 
 
Ms. Kelly W. Moore, Director of Finance, completed and received certification in this NACo 
Colin Powell Master Leadership program. 
 
A copy of the On-line Leadership Courses was included in the Board packet. 
 
3.02 District 19 Community Services Board – Jennifer Tunstall, Executive Director 
 



  
 

3 | Page – Minutes of May 20, 2021 Meeting of Board of Supervisors 
 
 

Ms. Jennifer Tunstall, the Executive Director of District 19 Community Services Board (D19 CSB) 
was in attendance and provided a brief update of their services and operations. 
 
Ms. Tunstall reviewed their mission to improve the quality and productivity of the lives of 
individuals who experience, or are at risk of experiencing, mental disabilities and/or substance 
abuse. 
 
She stated that they were licensed by the Virginia Department of Behavioral Health and 
Development Services to provide mental health, intellectual/developmental disability, substance 
abuse and prevention services to the citizens of the cities of Colonial Heights, Emporia, Hopewell, 
and Petersburg, and the counties of Dinwiddie, Greensville, Prince George, Surry and Sussex.   
 
She also reviewed their Board of Directors.  Ms. Tunstall noted D19 also offered emergency 
services for people in crisis, early intervention services for young children and prevention services 
to reduce risk and promote wellness. 
 
Other services discussed included Adult Services, Child and Adolescent Services, Community 
Integration and Crisis Services, and New Division:  Developmental Disability Services. 
 
Information was provided regarding individuals served in FY20 by services received, localities 
served, as well as summaries of services provided to individuals residing in Sussex monthly. 
 
Ms. Tunstall noted that D19 finances its work through a combination of public and private sector 
funding.  Funding is received from federal, state and local entities.  They serve a high volume of 
individuals that are uninsured.  Service fee revenue comes primarily from Medicaid, but also from 
other sources.  D19 began accepting some commercial insurances for services in February 2019. 
 
Local Funding match requirement was discussed.  FY21 State fund contribution to D19 is 
$8,510,923.  FY21 local matching funds requirement is $900,242.  Local Match Request for FY22 
of level funding was discussed as well. 
 
New legislation that impacts the locality regarding Marcus Alert was discussed.  D19 CSB stated 
that the Marcus Alert is named after Marcus-David Peters who was shot and killed by Richmond 
police in 2018 in the midst of a behavioral health crisis.  It was noted that it was a series of protocol 
aimed to divert to the behavioral health system or respond with a specialized law enforcement 
response include protocols to divert from 911 to crisis call center; MOUs for law enforcement 
backup to a crisis response and minimum standards/best practices for law enforcement response. 
 
There was discussion of what the Marcus Alert is seeking to change and/or implement as well as 
the overall goals and the build out of Crisis Services in Virginia, timeline of implementation, and 
what D19 is doing to prepare for Marcus Alert, and long term outcome. 
 
3.03 Crater Planning District Commission Update – Alec Brebner, Executive Director 
 



  
 

4 | Page – Minutes of May 20, 2021 Meeting of Board of Supervisors 
 
 

Mr. Alec Brebner, the Executive Director of the Crater Planning District Commission, was in 
attendance and provided an update of the Crater Planning District Commission to the Board to 
include participation in regional BBQ trail and Regional Tourism action. 
 
3.04 PROCLAMATION:  Elder Abuse Awards 2021 
 
Administration received notification from Mr. Will Hagy, Director of Sussex Department of Social 
Services, that the Crater District Area Agency on Aging—along with its Board of Directors and 
Advisory Council—are working together to raise public awareness about elder abuse and its 
devastating impact on individuals, families and communities. The County has been requested to 
support the proclamation for local governing bodies across the district to designate June 15, 2021 
as World Elder Abuse Awareness Day. Recommendation:  
 
A copy of the Proclamation designating June 15, 2021 World Elder Abuse Awareness Day and the 
CDAAA letter from Harold Sykes were included in the Board packet. 
 
Whereas, County of Sussex recognizes that in 2006, the International Network for the Prevention 
of Elder Abuse proclaimed June 15th of each year as World Elder Abuse Awareness Day; and  
 
Whereas, according to the Department of Justice (DOJ) Elder Abuse Initiative, elder abuse is an 
intentional or negligent act by any person that causes harm or a serious risk of harm to an older 
adult; subtypes of elder abuse include physical abuse, financial fraud, scams, exploitation, 
caregiver neglect and abandonment, psychological abuse, and sexual abuse; and  
 
Whereas, DOJ also reports that elder abuse is a serious crime against some of our nation’s most 
vulnerable citizens, affecting at least 10 percent of older Americans every year; and  
 
Whereas, some risk factors for elder abuse can include low social supports, poor physical health, 
and experience of previous traumatic events, according to the National Center on Elder Abuse; 
and  
 
Whereas, close to half of elderly individuals who suffer from dementia will experience abuse 
during their lifetime, according to the Department of Justice. Research suggested that elderly 
individuals who experience cognitive impairment, physical disabilities, and isolation are more 
likely to become the victims of abuse than those without disabilities; and  
 
Whereas, DARS also reports that the majority of incidents of adult abuse, neglect or exploitation 
occurs in the adult’s own house or apartment; and National Adult Protective Services Association 
reports that approximately 90 percent of the perpetrators in elder financial exploitation case are 
family members or other trusted individuals; and  
 
Whereas, elder abuse, neglect, or exploitation have no boundaries and cross all racial, social, class, 
gender, and geographic lines, according to the Elder Justice Coalition; and  
 



  
 

5 | Page – Minutes of May 20, 2021 Meeting of Board of Supervisors 
 
 

Whereas, only a small fraction of elder abuse cases is reported to the authorities, public awareness 
of elder abuse has the potential to increase identification and reporting of this crime by the public, 
professionals, and victims; and  
 
Whereas, the Population Projection by Age and Sex for Virginia and its Localities, 2020- 2040 
produced by Demographics Research Group of the Weldon Cooper Center for Public Recognition 
Service, reports that the total number of Virginians over the age of 60 numbers 1,889,268 seniors; 
and  
 
Whereas, the Virginia Department for Aging and Rehabilitative Services (DARS) reported data 
for state fiscal year 2020, of the 37,398 reports of adult abuse, neglect or exploitation received 
through the Adult Protective Services Program, 73 percent were persons age 60 years and older.  
 
Now, therefore, the County of Sussex Board of Supervisors of Sussex, Virginia do hereby proclaim 
June 15, 2021 to be Elder Abuse Awareness Day and recognize professionals, agencies, and 
advocates for their efforts to advance awareness of elder abuse; and  
 
The County of Sussex Board of Supervisors hereby urges every resident in our community to take 
time during this important day to support older adults and the people who serve them as essential 
and valuable members of our community, and to identify and report suspected elder abuse within 
our community.  
 
3.05 RECOGNITION:  Staff Response to I95 Horse Trailer Accident 
 
County Administration would like to take the opportunity to thank Lisa Mosely (Animal Services), 
Reid Foster (Public Safety), Sheriff Giles and the Sheriff’s office staff, and the local Fire 
Department for their assistance with the horse trailer accident on Interstate 95 in Sussex County 
on Wednesday, May 5, 2021 wherein the driver and three horses did.  One horse survived the 
Wednesday, May 5, 2021 wherein the driver and three horses died.  One horse survived the crash. 
 
Information courtesy of the 3WTKR News website. 
 
3.06 Indian Artifacts – Ms. Lynette Alston 
 
Ms. Lynette Alston, Chief of Nottoway, and Dr. Mark Woodard, Professor, gave an overview of 
possible Indian Artifacts on property in Sussex County. 
 
4.  Public Hearing 
 
4.01 Fiscal Year 2022 Proposed County Budget 
 
County Administrator Douglas stated that the purpose of the Public Hearing is to receive 
comments from the public regarding the Fiscal Year 2022 Proposed County Budget.  
 
Chair Seward opened the Public Hearing. 
 



  
 

6 | Page – Minutes of May 20, 2021 Meeting of Board of Supervisors 
 
 

Public comments were heard from Ms. Jessica Moore, Mr. Millard “Pete” Stith, and Catherine 
Owen. 
 
Board comments were heard from Supervisor Tyler. 
 
Chair Seward closed the Public Hearing. 
 
There was no action taken at this meeting. 
 
4.02 Calendar Year 2021 Proposed Tax Rates 
 
County Administrator Douglas stated that the purpose of the Public Hearing is to receive 
comments from the public regarding the Calendar Year 2021 Proposed Tax Rates. 
 
County Administrator noted that there was a small error in the Proposed Tax Rates.  It’s noted as 
.43% PPTRA, but it’s actually .45%. 
 
Chair Seward opened the Public Hearing. 
 
There were no public comments. 
 
There were no Board comments. 
 
Chair Seward closed the Public Hearing. 
 
There was no action taken at this meeting. 
 
4.03 Elderly/Disabled Real Property Tax Ordinance  
 
County Administrator Douglas stated that the public hearing is to consider and receive public 
comments regarding adopting an Elderly/Disabled Real Property Tax Ordinance for the County of 
Sussex.  
 
Chair Seward opened in the Public Hearing. 
 
Ms. Deste Cox, Treasurer, made presentation to the Board at its regular meeting in November, for 
a potential tax relief program for elderly and disabled persons. The Board voted to move forward 
with the Elderly/Disabled Real Property Tax Ordinance and a Public Hearing. The attached 
ordinance was prepared by the County Attorney and could serve as the basis for such a program. 
Specific items to consider are property owner income and assets, and the amount of land to be 
exempted.  
 
Chair Seward closed the Public Hearing. 
 
There were no public comments. 
 



  
 

7 | Page – Minutes of May 20, 2021 Meeting of Board of Supervisors 
 
 

Board comments were heard from Chair Seward. 
 
A copy of the Draft Ordinance to Adopt a Tax Relief Program for Elderly & Disabled Persons and 
a copy of the advertisement was included in the Board packet.  
 
ON MOTION OF SUPERVISOR TYLER, seconded by SUPERVISOR JOHNSON and carried:  
RESOLVED that the Sussex County Board of Supervisors hereby adopts the Ordinance #2021-02 
an ordinance of the board of supervisors of Sussex county, Virginia to adopt a real property tax 
relief program for elderly and disabled persons, to-wit: 
 
WHEREAS, Section 58.1-3210, et seq., of the Code of Virginia authorizes local governing bodies, 
such as the Sussex County Board of Supervisors, to exempt from taxation real estate and 
manufactured homes owned by qualifying elderly and permanently and totally disabled persons; 
and  
 
WHEREAS, such ordinance may provide for an exemption from a certain portion of real property 
taxes for individuals the age of 65 or over, or individuals who are permanently and totally disabled; 
and  
 
WHEREAS, the Sussex County Board of Supervisors finds that it is in the best interest of the 
county residents to adopt such ordinance that provides for an exemption from taxation for qualified 
elderly and permanently and totally disabled County residents; and  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Code of the Sussex County, Virginia, is hereby 
amended as follows:  
 

CHAPTER ____  
REAL PROPERTY EXEMPTION FOR ELDERLY AND PERMANENTLY AND TOTALLY 

DISABLED PERSONS 
 Sec. ____ Purpose of chapter.  
 
 The purpose of this chapter is to provide for the exemption of payment of taxes for real 
estate and manufactured homes in accordance with the Code of Virginia, §§ 58.1-3210—58.1- 
3218, for those elderly and permanently and totally disabled county residents who qualify under 
the provisions of this chapter. Sec. ___Definitions. The following words, terms and phrases, when 
used in this chapter, shall have the meanings ascribed to them in this section, except where the 
context clearly indicates a different meaning:  
 
 “Affidavit” means the real estate tax exemption affidavit.  
 
 “Dwelling” means the fulltime residence of the person or persons claiming exemption.  
 
 “Bona fide caregiver” means a person who provides direct care (as for children, elderly 
people, or chronically ill) in good faith without fraud or deceit.  
 



  
 

8 | Page – Minutes of May 20, 2021 Meeting of Board of Supervisors 
 
 

 “Exemption” means 100% exemption from taxes for real estate and manufactured homes 
pursuant to the provisions of this chapter.  
 
 “Income” means income from whatever source derived, including, but not limited to, 
Social Security payments, inheritance, gifts, gains from the sale or exchange of assets, proceeds of 
insurance, welfare receipts and benefits received from various pension plans.  
 
 “Manufactured home” shall mean that which is defined in Code of Virginia, § 36- 85.3.  
 
 “Net combined financial worth” means the fair market value of assets, tangible or 
intangible, legal or equitable, of the owner or owners, and the spouse of any owner, but excluding 
the value of the dwelling and the land, as provided in section 16-55(3).  
 
 “Permanently and totally disabled” means unable to engage in any substantial gainful 
activity by reason of any medically determinable physical or mental impairment or deformity 
which can be expected to result in death or can be expected to last for the duration of such person's 
life.  
 

“Tax” means the annual real estate and manufactured home tax, however assessed, of the 
county. “Taxable year” means the calendar year, from January 1 until December 31, for which 
exemption is claimed. “Taxpayer” means a person who owns and occupies, as his sole dwelling, 
property subject to the tax of the county.  

 
Sec. ___ Authorized; general prerequisites to grant.  
 
(a) A tax exemption is authorized for such real estate that is owned and occupied as the 

sole dwelling of such taxpayers who are not less than 65 years of age, or who are 
permanently and totally disabled, and who are eligible under the provisions of this 
chapter. A dwelling jointly held by spouses may qualify if either spouse is 65 or over 
or is permanently and totally disabled.  
 

(b) Exemption is authorized only if:  
 
(1) The total combined gross income during the immediately preceding calendar year from 

all sources of the owners of the dwelling living thereon and of the owners' relatives and 
non-relatives living in the dwelling, excluding bona fide caregivers of the owners and 
bona fide tenants, does not exceed $25,000.00 provided that the first $5,000 of the 
income of each relative, other than a spouse, of the owner who is living in the dwelling 
shall not be included in such total; and  
 

(2) The gross combined financial worth, including equitable interests, as of December 31 
of the immediately preceding calendar year of the owner and of the spouse of any 
owner, excluding the value of the dwelling and the land, not exceeding ONE ACRE 
upon which it is situated, does not exceed $100,000.00. Sec. ___ Applies to residential 
property only. It is the express purpose of this chapter to confine the exemption to 
residential property exclusively used as such by the owners thereof. No income bearing 



  
 

9 | Page – Minutes of May 20, 2021 Meeting of Board of Supervisors 
 
 

residential property or combination of business and residential property shall be entitled 
to the exemption.  

 
Sec. ___ Taxpayer's affidavit and certificate of disability.  

  
(a) For a taxpayer to qualify for exemption, he must file annually, after January 1 but 

not later than April 1, with the commissioner of the revenue on forms provided by the 
commissioner of the revenue an affidavit under oath setting forth:  

 
(1) The names of the related persons occupying such real estate; and 
 
(2) That the total combined net worth including equitable interests and the combined 

income from all sources, of the persons specified above, does not exceed the limits prescribed in 
this ordinance.  

 
(b) If a taxpayer is under 65 years of age such affidavit shall have attached thereto a 

certification by the Veterans Administration or the Railroad Retirement Board, or if the 
taxpayer is not eligible for certification by any of these agencies, a sworn affidavit by two 
medical doctors licensed to practice medicine in the state, to the effect that the taxpayer is 
permanently and totally disabled, as defined in Virginia Code Section 58.1-3217. The 
affidavit of at least one of such doctors shall be based upon a physical examination of the 
taxpayer by such doctor. The affidavit of one of the doctors may be based on information 
contained in the records of the civil service commission which is relevant to the standards 
for determining permanent and total disability as so defined. 

 
Sec. ___ Commissioner of the revenue may request production of documents and make 

inquiries of taxpayer.  
 
In administering this chapter, the commissioner of the revenue may request, if needed, 

certified tax returns or other documents of the taxpayer necessary to establish the income or 
financial worth of the taxpayer. The commissioner may make reasonably necessary inquiries of 
the taxpayer, requiring answers under oath, to determine qualifications specified in this chapter, 
including qualification as permanently and totally disabled.  

 
If it is determined that the person is qualified for the exemption, the commissioner shall 

notify the person in writing of the amount of the exemption.  If it is determined that the person is 
not eligible for the exemption, the commissioner shall notify the person in writing of the fact the 
exemption has been denied.  

 
An individual who does not qualify for the exemption or deferral under this article based 

upon the previous year's income limitations and financial worth limitations, may nonetheless 
qualify for the current year by filing an affidavit that clearly shows a substantial change of 
circumstances, that was not volitional on the part of the individual to become eligible for the 
exemption or deferral, and will result in income and financial worth levels that are within the 
limitations of the ordinance.  

 



  
 

10 | Page – Minutes of May 20, 2021 Meeting of Board of Supervisors 
 
 

Sec. ___ Effect of applicant's residency in hospital, nursing home or similar facility.  
 
The fact that persons who are otherwise qualified for exemption pursuant to this chapter 

are residing in hospitals, nursing homes, convalescent homes or other facilities for physical or 
mental care for extended periods of time shall not be construed to mean that the property for which 
tax exemption is sought does not continue to be the sole dwelling of such persons during such 
extended periods of other residence, so long as such property is not used by or leased to others for 
consideration.  

 
Sec. ___ Nullification upon change in status.  
 
Changes in respect to income, financial worth, ownership of property or other factors 

occurring during the taxable year for which the affidavit is filed and having the effect of exceeding 
or violating the limitations and conditions provided herein shall nullify any exemption for the then 
current taxable year and the taxable year immediately following.  

 
A change in ownership to a spouse less than 65 years of age and not totally and permanently 

disabled which resulted solely from the death of the qualified spouse shall result in a prorated 
exemption for the then current taxable year.  

 
Sec. ___ Effective Date. The provision of this chapter shall apply commencing with the 

2022 tax year 
 
 Adopted by the Sussex County Board of Supervisors on a motion by Supervisor Tyler, 
seconded by Supervisor W. Jones and vote of 5 ayes and 0 nays at their regularly scheduled 
meeting on the 20th day of May, 2021. 
Voting aye:  Supervisors Johnson, D. Jones, W. Jones, Seward, Tyler 
Voting nay:  none 
Absent:  Supervisor Fly 
 
5.  Appointments  
 
5.01 Appointment to the Crater District Area Agency on Aging 
 
County Administrator Douglas stated that the term of Ms. Brenda Burgess, 405 East Main Street, 
Waverly, VA, 23890 on the Crater District Area Agency on Aging (CDAAA) Board of Directors 
has expired.  Staff spoke with Ms. Burgess and she is willing to continue to serve, if reappointed. 
 
If reappointed, Ms. Burgess’ two-year term will expire December 31, 2023.  
 
For informational purpose, the Crater District Area Agencies on Aging are local aging programs 
that provide information and services on a range of assistance for older adults who those care for 
them. By contacting your local agency you get access to critical information including: 
 
      • Available service in your area 
      • Mobility assistance programs, meal plans & housing 



  
 

11 | Page – Minutes of May 20, 2021 Meeting of Board of Supervisors 
 
 

      • Assistance in gaining access to services 
      • Individual counseling, support groups and caregiver training 
      • Respite care 
      • Supplemental services, on a limited basis 
 
(Information provided from website.) 
 
A copy of the confirmation letter was included in the Board packet. 
 
ON MOTION OF SUPERVISOR D. JONES, seconded by SUPERVISOR JOHNSON and 
carried:  RESOLVED that the Board of Supervisors hereby reappoints Ms. Brenda Burgess, 405 
East Main Street, Waverly, Virginia 23890, to the Crater District Area Agency on Aging Board of 
Directors, for a two (2) year term, expiring December 31, 2023.  All Board members present voted 
aye. 
 
5.02 Appointments to the Building Code Appeals Board 
 
County Administrator Douglas stated that the term of Mr. Larry Pond, Post Office Box 14, 
Waverly, Virginia, 23890, on the Building Code Appeals Board is due to expire June 30, 2021.  
Staff has contacted Mr. Pond.  He is willing to continue to serve, if reappointed.  If reappointed, 
his term will expire June 30, 2025. 
 
It was noted that there is a vacancy that will expire June 30, 2021 and will need an appointment 
for a term starting July 1, 2021, as well, to provide continuity so that the terms of members may 
be of different lengths so that less than half will expire in any one year, the appointment for this 
vacancy will expire June 30, 2026. 
 
A copy of the confirmation letter, the 2015 Virginia Building Code Appeals Board Info, Section 
119 and a copy of the Building Code Appeals Board were included in the packet. 
 
ON MOTION OF SUPERVISOR TYLER, seconded by SUPERVISOR W. JONES and carried:  
RESOLVED that the Board of Supervisors hereby reappoints Mr. Larry Pond, Post Office Box 14, 
Waverly, Virginia, 23890, to the Building Code Appeals Board with a term, expiring June 30, 
2025.  All Board members present voted aye. 
 
5.03 Appointments to the Board of Zoning Appeals 
 
This item was carried over from the February 18, 2021 regular Board of Supervisors meeting. 
Several members on the Board of Zoning Appeals have resigned. There are currently three (3) 
vacancies.  
 
Nominations for appointment by the Circuit Court Judge need to be made for a term that expired 
January 31, 2021. This nomination will be for a term to starting immediately and expiring January 
31, 2026. Two (2) nominations will need to be made for terms starting immediately, expiring 
January 31, 2023 and January 31, 2024, respectively.  
 



  
 

12 | Page – Minutes of May 20, 2021 Meeting of Board of Supervisors 
 
 

County Administrator Douglas stated that the BZA needs to have at least three (3) members to 
have a quorum.  
 
Vice Chairman Wayne Jones nominated Mr. Chase (Butler) Boykin, 5060 N Beaver Dam Road, 
Waverly, Virginia 23890. Mr. Boykin is the owner of Butler’s Towing.  Vice Chairman Wayne 
Jones also recommended Ms. Darlean Whiting, 240 N. Pine Street, Wakefield, Virginia 23888, for 
nomination of appointment by the Circuit Court Judge.  Ms. Whiting is a member of Wakefield 
Town Council and is active in the community.  
 
If appointed by the Circuit Court Judge, both terms will start immediately.  Mr. Butler’s term will 
expire January 31, 2023. Ms. Whiting’s term will expire January 31, 2024. 
 
A copy of the BZA ByLaws and the Roster of BZA Board members were included in the Board 
packet. 
 
A copy of the Board of Zoning Appeals ByLaws and roster were included in the Board packet. 
 
ON MOTION OF SUPERVISOR JOHNSON, seconded by SUPERVISOR D. JONES and 
carried:  RESOLVED that the Sussex County hereby recommends Mr. Chase (Butler) Boykin, 
5060 N Beaver Dam Road, Waverly, Virginia 23890 for nomination to the Circuit Court Judge for 
appointment to the Board of Zoning Appeals with a term starting immediately and expiring 
January 31, 2023; and 
 
FURTHER RESOLVED that the Board hereby recommends Ms. Darlean Whiting, 240 N. Pine 
Street, Wakefield, Virginia 23888, for nomination for appointment by the Circuit Court Judge for 
appointment to the Board of Zoning Appeals with a term starting immediately and expiring 
January 31, 2024.  All Board members present voted aye. 
 
6.01. Fiscal Year 2022 (FY22) Budget Approval Ordinance 
 
No action taken.  Moved to a Special meeting. 
 
6.02 Calendar Year 2021 (CY21) Tax Rate Ordinance 
 
No action taken.  Moved to a Special meeting. 
 
7.  Citizens’ Comments 
 
There were several citizens speaking in opposition of the mining operation.  Citizens listed in 
separate attachment. 

 
8.  Unfinished Business – none  
 
9.  New Business 
 



  
 

13 | Page – Minutes of May 20, 2021 Meeting of Board of Supervisors 
 
 

9.01 Public Facility Review of Flat Foot Solar, LLC, Application #2021 Appeal, Code of 
Virginia 15.2-2232 

 
This item was removed and deferred during agenda amendments. 
 
10.  Board Member Comments 
 
10.01 Blackwater District – none 
 
10.02 Courthouse District – absent. 
 
10.03 Henry District – none 
 
10.04 Stony Creek District – none. 
 
10.05 Wakefield District – none 
 
10.06 Waverly District – none. 
 
11. Closed Session 
 
11.01 Convene to Closed Session 
 
ON MOTION OF SUPERVISOR W. JONES, seconded by SUPERVISOR D. JONES and carried:  
RESOLVED that the Sussex County Board of Supervisors hereby enters Closed Session for 
discussion of a prospective business or industry or the expansion of an existing business or industry 
where no previous announcement has been made of the business’ or industry’s interest in locating 
or expanding its facilities in the community; pursuant to Va. Code Section 2.2-3711(A)5. 
All Board members present voted aye. 
 
11.02/03.  Reconvene to Open Session/Certification of Closed Session 
 
ON MOTION OF SUPERVISOR W. JONES, seconded by SUPERVISOR TYLER and carried:  
RESOLVED that the Sussex County Board of Supervisors hereby reconvened to Open Session 
and convened a Closed Meeting on this date pursuant to an affirmative recorded vote in accordance 
with the provisions of the Virginia Freedom of Information Act; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Sussex County Board of Supervisors hereby approves adoption of resolution for 
certification, to-wit: 
 
WHEREAS, that the Sussex County Board of Supervisors convened a Closed Meeting on this date 
pursuant to an affirmative recorded vote in accordance with the provisions of the Virginia Freedom 
of Information Act; and 
 
WHEREAS, Section 2.2-3712 of the Code of Virginia, as amended, requires a certification by the 
Board that such Closed Meeting was conducted inconformity with Virginia law. 



  
 

14 | Page – Minutes of May 20, 2021 Meeting of Board of Supervisors 
 
 

 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Supervisors hereby certifies that, to 
the best of each member’s knowledge (i) only public business matters lawfully exempted from 
Open Meeting requirements by Virginia law were discussed in the Closed Meeting to which this 
certification resolution applies, and (ii) only such public business matters as were identified in the 
motion convening the Closed Meeting were heard discussed or considered. 
Voting aye:  Supervisors Johnson, D. Jones, W. Jones, Seward, Tyler 
Voting nay:  none 
 
11.04 Action Resulting from Closed Session 
 
There was no action. 
 
12.  Adjournment 
 
12.01 Adjournment 
 
ON MOTION OF SUPERVISOR W. JONES, seconded by SUPERVISOR TYLER and carried:  
RESOLVED that the May 20, 2021 regular meeting of the Sussex County Board of Supervisors 
hereby adjourned at 9:48 p.m. 
All Board members presented voted aye. 
 
12.02 Next Meeting 
 
The next regular Board of Supervisors meeting will be held on Thursday, June 17, 2021 at 6 p.m. 
 



 
 

Page 1 - Minutes of the June 2, 2021 Special Meeting of the Board of Supervisors 
 
 

At a Special Meeting of the Board of Supervisors  
Held on Wednesday, June 2, 2021 – 6 pm 

 
 
BOARD MEMBERS PRESENT 
C. Eric Fly 
Debbie P. Jones 
Wayne O. Jones (via Zoom) 
Susan M. Seward 
Rufus E. Tyler, Sr. 
Steve White, Tie Breaker (via Zoom) 
 
BOARD MEMBER ABSENT 
Marian D. Johnson 
 
STAFF PRESENT 
Richard Douglas, County Administrator 
Deste J. Cox, Treasurer 
G. Reid Foster, Public Safety Coordinator 
Jeffrey Gary, Director of Public Works 
Ernest Giles, Sheriff 
Kelly W. Moore 
Shilton R. Butts, Assistant to the County Administrator/Deputy Clerk 
 
Item 1.  Call to order/Determine Quorum (8:00 p.m.) 
 
The June 2, 2021 Special meeting of the Sussex County Board of Supervisors was called to order 
by Chairman Seward. 
 
Item 2.  Invocation 
 
Supervisor Fly offered the Invocation. 
 
Item 3.  The Pledge of Allegiance 
 
The Pledge of Allegiance was recited by all. 
 
Item 4.  Agenda Amendments  
 
There were no agenda amendments. 
 
Item 5.  Approval of Agenda 
 
ON MOTION OF SUPERVISOR D. JONES, seconded by SUPERVISOR TYLER and carried:  
RESOLVED that the Sussex County Board of Supervisors hereby approves the June 2, 2021 
Special Meeting agenda as presented.  All Board members presented voted aye. 



 
 

Page 2 - Minutes of the June 2, 2021 Special Meeting of the Board of Supervisors 
 
 

 
Item 6.  General Budget Discussions 
 
County Administrator Douglas stated that at the Public Hearing only public comments were heard 
from Community Coalition and Jarratt Senior Citizens Center. 
 
County Administrator Douglas stated that there were changes from the Comp Board.     
 
Mr. Douglas discussed the Housing Department.  He stated the Board had requested a copy of the 
audited that was conducted.  It was noted that he had not received a copy of the audit.   
 
Mr. Douglas noted that a letter of notice was received from the Virginia Housing Development 
Authority (DBA Virginia Housing) stating they were exercising its right to end the relationship 
with Sussex County in the administration of the Housing Choice Voucher Program (HCVP). 
 
Supervisor D. Jones requested funding for the Jarratt Senior Citizens Center. 
 
Supervisor Tyler requested funding $5,000 to Community Coalition, former Pastor’s Coalition.  
 
There was discussion of the deputies’ use and or access of the building.  There was discussion of 
the political activity. 
 
There was discussion that ending the program would remove Housing from the budget.  It was 
noted that it was approximately $20,000 difference in the expenditures and revenue for Housing. 
 
There was discussion of the Blackwater Regional Library contract. 
 
County Administrator Douglas reminded the Board that all Capital items and the back half of the 
fiscal year for convenience sites and contracted EMS that will need to be added back in the budget 
in approximately June or July when funding is received. 
 
ON MOTION OF D. JONES, seconded by SUPERVISOR FLY and carried:  RESOLVED that 
the Sussex County Board of Supervisors hereby removes the both, revenues and expenditures, for 
the entire budget item of Housing and forfeit the Housing Voucher Program. 
Voting aye:  Supervisors Fly, D. Jones, W. Jones, Seward 
Voting nay:  none 
Abstained:  Supervisor Tyler 
Absent:  Supervisor Johnson 
 
ON MOTION OF SUPERVISOR TYLER, seconded by SUPERVISOR D. JONES and carried:  
RESOLVED that the Sussex County Board of Supervisors hereby appropriates $5,000 to 
Community Coalition, formerly Pastor’s Coalition; and  
 
FURTHER RESOLVED that the Sussex County Board of Supervisors hereby appropriates $5,000 
to the Jarratt Senior Citizens’ Center.  All Board members present voted aye. 
 



 
 

Page 3 - Minutes of the June 2, 2021 Special Meeting of the Board of Supervisors 
 
 

Item 7.  Consideration of FY22 Budget Approval Ordinance 
 
ON MOTION OF SUPERVISOR FLY, seconded by SUPERVISOR TYLES and carried:  
RESOLVED that the Sussex County Board of Supervisors hereby approves the budget as amended 
and adopts Ordinance #21-05 to approve the budgets and appropriate funds for the County of 
Sussex and the Sussex County School Division for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2021 ending 
June 30, 2022 

 
WHEREAS, the County Administrator has submitted to the Sussex County Board of Supervisors 
a proposed annual budget for the County for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2021 and ending 
June 30, 2022, which has been reviewed by the Board of Supervisors; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Board has duly advertised and held a public hearing on the proposed budget for 
the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2021 and ending June 30, 2022; and 
 
WHEREAS, it is necessary to adopt said budget and appropriate sufficient funds to cover the 
requirements included therein; and WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors, in exercising its 
independent judgement and in concert with the Sussex County School Board, has considered the 
school’s annual operating budget; and 
 
WHEREAS, after considering availability of local funds, approval of the Sussex County School 
Board’s fiscal year 2022 educational budget is based upon funding from the federal government 
in the amount of $2,889,875; from the state government in the amount of $10,050,772; from the 
local appropriations in the amount of $7,749,170; and other local revenues in the amount of 
$329,700; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Sussex County Board of Supervisors this 2nd day 
of June, 2021, that the fiscal year 2022 annual budget of the Sussex County School Division for 
school operations in the amount of $21,019,517 be, and is hereby, approved subject to and 
contingent upon the availability of funds as indicated in the preamble hereto. 

BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED that the annual budget in the sum of $839,118 for fiscal year 2022 
be, and is hereby, approved for the operation of food service programs for purposes authorized and 
approved by the Sussex County School Board subject to and contingent upon the availability of 
funds. 

BE IT STILL FURTHER ORDAINED that the fiscal year 2022 annual budget for the County of 
Sussex be, and is hereby, adopted as proposed on this date. 

BE IT STILL FURTHER ORDAINED that the following annual appropriations for fiscal year 2022 
be, and are hereby made in the General fund for the following functions: 

 
Education $7,753,652 
Sheriff’s Operations & Jail $5,374,665 

Debt Service $1,534,697 
  



 
 

Page 4 - Minutes of the June 2, 2021 Special Meeting of the Board of Supervisors 
 
 

General Government Administration $2,051,121 
Fire, Rescue, & Emergency Services $1,612,820 
Public Works $1,010,042 
Judicial Administration $1,212,429 
Health & Welfare $1,030,528 
Non-Departmental & Transfers $154,189 
Community Development $560,525 
Parks, Recreation and Cultural $255,151 
 $22,549,819 

 
 
BE IT STILL FURTHER ORDAINED that the County Administrator be, and is hereby, 
authorized to transfer the appropriations in the General Fund Non-Departmental function to the 
related categories in the various General Fund functions. 

BE IT STILL FURTHER ORDAINED that the $7,753,652 appropriated above from the General 
Fund for Education, includes $7,709,170 for the local contribution to the School Division for 
support of the School operating budget and, is appropriated as a non-categorical appropriation to 
be allocated among the various operating categories as the School Board deems necessary and the 
remaining $40,000 is appropriated as the County’s share of IT salary expenses and $4,482 is 
appropriated for contributions to outside educational institutions. 
 
BE IT STILL FURTHER ORDAINED that the annual appropriation in the sum of 2,375,851for 
fiscal year 2022 be, and is hereby, made in the Social Services Fund for the operations of the 
Sussex Department of Social Services. 

BE IT STILL FURTHER ORDAINED that the annual appropriation of the Social Services Fund 
be, and is hereby, increased if and when additional federal and/or state funds or local contributions 
become available. The County Administrator shall advise the Board of Supervisors in writing of 
all such actions. 

BE IT STILL FURTHER ORDAINED that the annual appropriation in the sum of $740,000 for 
fiscal year 2022 be, and is hereby, made in the CSA Fund to carry out the mandates of the 
Comprehensive Services Act. 

BE IT STILL FURTHER ORDAINED that the annual appropriation of the CSA Fund be, and 
is hereby, increased if and when additional federal and/or state funds or local contributions become 
available. The County Administrator shall advise the Board of Supervisors in writing of all such 
actions. 

BE IT STILL FURTHER ORDAINED that the annual appropriation in the sum of $766 for 
fiscal year 2022 be, and is hereby, made in the Law Library Fund. 
 
BE IT STILL FURTHER ORDAINED that the annual appropriation of the Law Library Fund 
be, and is hereby, increased if and when additional federal and/or state funds or local contributions 



 
 

Page 5 - Minutes of the June 2, 2021 Special Meeting of the Board of Supervisors 
 
 

become available. The County Administrator shall advise the Board of Supervisors in writing of 
all such actions. 

BE IT STILL FURTHER ORDAINED that, the County Treasurer, upon receipt of a written 
order from the County Administrator, is authorized to advance monies between the several County 
funds under his custody provided, however, that the total advanced to any particular fund, plus the 
amount of monies disbursed from that fund, does not exceed the annual appropriation of said fund. 
 
BE IT STILL FURTHER ORDAINED that, upon receiving notice of grant of program 
opportunities offered by various federal, state, local and other outside organizations, the County 
Administrator or his designee be, and is hereby designated as the agent to execute the necessary 
grant or program application and other documentation, unless the terms of the grant or program 
require specific actions by the Board, to give such assurances as may be required by the agreement 
subject to approval as to form by the County Attorney and to provide such additional information 
as may be required by the awarding organization. In addition, the funding awarded, not to exceed 
$50,000, shall be, and is hereby, appropriated to the applicable functional area. 

BE IT STILL FURTHER ORDAINED that interest earned on grant and program awards 
received from federal, state, local and other outside organizations be, and is hereby, appropriated 
to the appropriate functional area to be expended in accordance with the guidelines as established 
by the organizations. 

BE IT STILL FURTHER ORDAINED that additional funds received for various County 
programs, including contributions and donations, be, and are hereby, appropriated for the purposes 
established by each program. 

BE IT STILL FURTHER ORDAINED that funds received from the Federal Emergency 
Management Agency (FEMA) for reimbursements for expenses incurred as a result of unusual or 
infrequent events not to exceed $50,000 per incident be, and are hereby, appropriated under this 
program for the appropriate functional area. 

BE IT STILL FURTHER ORDAINED that funds received through insurance claims for 
damages incurred to County property as  a result  of unusual or infrequent events not to exceed 
$50,000 per incident be, and are hereby, appropriated under this program to the appropriate 
functional area. 

BE IT STILL FURTHER ORDAINED that upon receipt of written notification from the State 
Compensation Board of additional funds for the Constitutional Officers (Commonwealth’s 
Attorney, Sheriff, Clerk of Court, Treasurer and Commissioner of the Revenue) be, and are hereby, 
appropriated in the General fund to be expended in accordance with guidelines as established by the 
state government. 
 
BE IT STILL FURTHER ORDAINED that the monies be, and are hereby, appropriated for fiscal 
year 2022 in the various funds for the purpose of liquidating encumbered purchase transactions and 
for continuing capital and special projects as of June 30, 2021 not to exceed the applicable fund 
balance/net assets/net position as recorded in the County’s audited accounting records. The County 
Administrator shall advise the Board of Supervisors in writing of all such actions. 



 
 

Page 6 - Minutes of the June 2, 2021 Special Meeting of the Board of Supervisors 
 
 

BE IT STILL FURTHER ORDAINED that the County Administrator be, and is hereby, 
authorized to transfer funds within and between appropriation functions. These transfers may be 
made to allow the disbursement of funds for unanticipated costs incurred in daily County operations.  
All Board members present voted aye. 
 
Item 8.  Consideration of CY21 Tax Rate Ordinance 
 
ON MOTION OF SUPERVISOR D. JONES, seconded by SUPERVISOR TYLER and carried:  
RESOLVED that the Sussex County Board of Supervisors hereby adopts the Resolution for 
Calendar Year 2021 Tax Rates;  
 
WHEREAS, it is necessary for the Board of Supervisors to establish real estate and personal 
property tax levies for the County of Sussex for calendar year beginning January 1, 2021 and 
ending December 31, 2021; and 

WHEREAS, the Board has duly advertised and held a public hearing on the subject of tax levies; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Sussex County Board of Supervisors this 2ND 

day of June, 2021, that the following County tax levies be, and they hereby are, imposed for the 
calendar year 2021: 
 

 
Class of Property 

Rate Per $100 of 
    Assessed Valuation  

Real Estate (including Public Service Corporations) $0.58 
Mobile Homes $0.58 

Machinery & Tools $2.43 
Merchant's Capital $1.00 

Fire & Rescue $2.43 
Tangible Personal Property (including Public Service Corporations) $4.85 

 
All Board members present voted aye. 
 
Item 9. Citizens’ Comments 
 
Comments were heard from Catherine Owens, the representative from the Jarratt Senior Citizens 
Center. 
 
Item 10.  Adjournment 
 
ON MOTION OF SUPERVISOR FLY, seconded by SUPERVISOR D. JONES and carried:  
RESOLVED that the Sussex County Board of Supervisors hereby adjourned the June 2, 2021 
Special Meeting at 6:40 p.m. 
Voting aye:  Supervisors Fly, D. Jones, W. Jones, Seward, Tyler 
Voting nay:  none 
Absent:  Supervisor Johnson 



TOTAL ALL WARRANTS FOR APPROVAL $668,953.21

TOTAL ALL VOID CHECKS FOR APPROVAL $0.00

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE WARRANTS: CHECK NO. AMOUNTS PROCESS DATE

FOR MONTH OF JUNE 2021 219031-219065 122,616.19$       RUN DATE 6/3/21
219076-219147 99,761.14$         RUN DATE 6/10/21
219148-219166 21,209.22$         RUN DATE 6/16/21
219220-219328 296,218.50$       RUN DATE 6/29/21

Total Regular Warrants $539,805.05

PAY. DEDUCTION WARRANTS: 219066-219075 62,854.51$         RUN DATE 6/16/21
219167-219209 5,970.00$           RUN DATE 6/24/21
219210-219219 60,323.65$         RUN DATE 6/30/21

Total Deduction Warrants: $129,148.16

TOTAL VOUCHERS & WARRANTS FOR APPROVAL $668,953.21

VOID CHECKS See attached

July 15, 2021
      WARRANTS & VOUCHERS SUMMARY



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 
CHECKS 

 

















































 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

PAYROLL 
DEDUCTION 

CHECKS 









TOTAL ALL WARRANTS FOR APPROVAL $507,646.69

TOTAL ALL VOID CHECKS FOR APPROVAL $2,100.00

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE WARRANTS: CHECK NO. AMOUNTS PROCESS DATE

FOR MONTH OF MAY 2021 218718-218761 124,718.24$       RUN DATE 5/06/21
218816-218858 2,100.00$           RUN DATE 5/12/21
218859-218906 41,076.45$         RUN DATE 5/13/21
218907-218976 146,318.17$       RUN DATE 5/20/21
218987-219030 73,082.15$         RUN DATE 5/27/21

Total Regular Warrants $387,295.01

PAY. DEDUCTION WARRANTS: 218762-218772 61,495.03$         RUN DATE 5/14/21
218977-218986 58,856.65$         RUN DATE 5/28/21

Total Deduction Warrants: $120,351.68

TOTAL VOUCHERS & WARRANTS FOR APPROVAL $507,646.69

VOID CHECKS See attached 2,100.00$           
218773-218815 2,100.00 RUN DATE 5/12/2021

JUNE 17, 2021
      WARRANTS & VOUCHERS SUMMARY



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 
CHECKS 

 



















































 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

PAYROLL 
DEDUCTION 

CHECKS 









2.03

Consent Agenda - Page 1

sricks
Highlight



Consent Agenda - Page 2



Consent Agenda - Page 3



Consent Agenda - Page 4



Consent Agenda - Page 5



Consent Agenda - Page 6



Consent Agenda - Page 7



2.03

Consent Agenda - Page 8

sricks
Highlight



Consent Agenda - Page 9



Consent Agenda - Page 10



Consent Agenda - Page 11



Consent Agenda - Page 12



Consent Agenda - Page 13



Consent Agenda - Page 14



Consent Agenda - Page 15



Consent Agenda - Page 16



Consent Agenda - Page 17



2.04

Consent Agenda - Page 18

sricks
Highlight



Consent Agenda - Page 19



Consent Agenda - Page 20



2.04

Consent Agenda - Page 21

sricks
Highlight



Consent Agenda - Page 22



Consent Agenda - Page 23



Consent Agenda - Page 24



Consent Agenda - Page 25



Consent Agenda - Page 26



2.05 

PUBLIC WORKS 

DEPARTMENT 

July 22, 2021 

Monthly Report 

Building & Grounds 
Department 

Solid Waste Services 

Building Department 

Consent Agenda - Page 27



MEMORANDUM 

DATE:  July 6, 2021 

TO: Richard Douglas, County Administrator  

FROM: Jeffrey Gary, Building Official   

SUBJECT: June 2021 - Monthly Report 

Please accept this as the June 2021 update for the Community Development Department.  

BUILDING ACTIVITY  

• June 2021

Building 
Permits 

Electrical 
Permits 

Plumbing & 
Sprinkler 
Permits 

Mechanical 
Permits 

Field 
Inspections 

Improvement 
Value 

Revenue 
Generated 

22 21 6 6 57 $1,521,255 $8,088.10 

• June 2020

Building 
Permits 

Electrical 
Permits 

Plumbing & 
Sprinkler 
Permits 

Mechanical 
Permits 

Field 
Inspections 

Improvement 
Value 

Revenue 
Generated 

15 16 3 4 77 $895,441 $8,099.80 

• January 2021 – December 2021 (Yearly totals)

Building 
Permits 

Electrical 
Permits 

Plumbing & 
Sprinkler 
Permits 

Mechanical 
Permits 

Field 
Inspections 

Improvement 
Value 

Revenue 
Generated 

75 73 22 38 361 $3,681,068 $28,454.40 

Consent Agenda - Page 28



MEMORANDUM 

DATE:  June 8, 2021 

TO: Richard Douglas, County Administrator 

FROM: Beverly Walkup, Director of Planning   

SUBJECT: May 2021 - Monthly Report 

Please accept this as the May 2021 update for the Community Development Department.  

BUILDING ACTIVITY  

 May 2021

Building 

Permits 

Electrical 

Permits 

Plumbing & 

Sprinkler 

Permits 

Mechanical 

Permits 

Field 

Inspections 

Improvement 

Value 

Revenue 

Generated 

9 9 2 4 74 $267,938.00 $4,025.68 

 May 2020

Building 

Permits 

Electrical 

Permits 

Plumbing & 

Sprinkler 

Permits 

Mechanical 

Permits 

Field 

Inspections 

Improvement 

Value 

Revenue 

Generated 

8 13 4 3 55 $489,394.00 $3,379.44 

 January 2021 – December 2021 (Yearly totals)

Building 

Permits 

Electrical 

Permits 

Plumbing & 

Sprinkler 

Permits 

Mechanical 

Permits 

Field 

Inspections 

Improvement 

Value 

Revenue 

Generated 

53 52 16 32 304 $2,159,813.00 $20,366.30 

Consent Agenda - Page 29



Origin / Material Summary Report

Criteria: 06/01/2021 12:00 AM to 06/30/2021 11:59 PM

Business Unit Name: Atlantic Waste Disposal - S05136 (USA)
Origin Material Tons

DC Special Misc-Tons 386.30 

Origin Total 386.30 

DE MSWT 78.67 

DE Sandblast Grit-Tons 29.18 

Origin Total 107.85 

MD MSWT 510.58 

MD Sludge Indus-Tons 183.62 

MD SludgeIndus-Tons 127.84 

MD Special Misc-Tons 36.78 

Origin Total 858.82 

NC CDTC 128.44 

NC MSWT 4,385.15 

NC Special Misc-Tons 2,958.04 

Origin Total 7,471.63 

NY MSWT 74,121.84 

Origin Total 74,121.84 

PA MSWT 18.25 

Origin Total 18.25 

SUSS BUS MSWT 76.96 

SUSS BUS Sludge Indus-Tons 1,634.18 

Origin Total 1,711.14 

SUSS RES MSWT 467.16 

Origin Total 467.16 

VA Auto Fluff-Tons 2,833.89 

VA CDTC 187.53 

VA MSWT 14,909.06 

VA SludgeIndus-Tons 14.68 

VA Special Misc-Tons 847.52 

Origin Total 18,792.68 

Totals 103,935.67 

Consent Agenda - Page 30



Origin / Material Summary Report

Criteria: 05/01/2021 12:00 AM to 05/31/2021 11:59 PM

Business Unit Name: Atlantic Waste Disposal - S05136 (USA)
Origin Material Tons

DC Special Misc-Tons 314.34

Origin Total 314.34

DE MSWT 4.94

Origin Total 4.94

GA MSWT 20.02

Origin Total 20.02

MD MSWT 216.37

MD Sludge Indus-Tons 160.39

MD SludgeIndus-Tons 183.06

MD Special Misc-Tons 47.47

MD Special Misc-Tons 22.21

Origin Total 629.50

NC CDTC 114.18

NC MSWT 4,405.62

NC Special Misc-Tons 2,535.51

Origin Total 7,055.31

NY MSWT 60,841.62

Origin Total 60,841.62

PA MSWT 61.19

Origin Total 61.19

SUSS BUS MSWT 73.54

SUSS BUS Sludge Indus-Tons 2,031.17

Origin Total 2,104.71

SUSS RES CDTC 7.18

SUSS RES MSWT 474.38

Origin Total 481.56

VA Auto Fluff-Tons 811.68

VA CDTC 164.35

VA MSWT 15,203.74

VA SludgeIndus-Tons 456.69

VA Special Misc-Tons 844.97

Origin Total 17,481.43

Totals 88,994.62

Consent Agenda - Page 31



Monthly Report 
July 22, 2021 

Consent Agenda - Page 32



July 7, 2021 

TO:  Richard Douglas, County Administrator 

FROM: Reid Foster, Jr., Public Safety Coordinator 

SUBJECT: May/June 2021 Monthly Reports 

Enclosed you will find the monthly report for May/June 2021. 

RADIO SYSTEM:  Still having problems with the paging system.  Harris still working on problem no 
solution in site. 

Working on getting quotes to have air condition replaced at Waverly site. 

FIRE DEPTS: Working with each department on equipment needed for new engines and getting 
prices for that equipment. 

Tanker 180 is out of service.  Pump repair cost is estimated at $10,000.00. 

Still receiving quotes on equipment for new engines.  Will be talking with Richard about funding 
for this. 

Several major accidents in the County. The worst was on I95 involving animals. 

Helping Stony Creek and Waverly with their new responder and brush truck.  Both trucks are 
titled to County. 

Met with Timm ons and Wooten on getting Prices on site plan design for Stony Creek Fire and 
ems Station. 

Drowning in Town of Stony Creek.  Chesterfield Dive Team was called to assist. Body was 
recovered and scene was turned over to Conversation Police. 

Received Forestry Grant.  This is 50/50 matching grand. Funds to match will come from Fire 
Program fund. 

Met with Fire and Rescue Association 

RESCUE: Still waiting on meeting with Board of Directors of Waverly Rescue Squad. 

Consent Agenda - Page 33



Had several conversations with dealer for new medic. 

EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT: Still working on getting EOC operation.  

Still updating the Emergency Operation Plan VDEM is reviewing now. 

Consent Agenda - Page 34



Planning & Zoning 

Department 

July 22, 2021 

Monthly Report 

Consent Agenda - Page 35



Planning Department Monthly April 2021 

Beverly Walkup, Director of Planning 

Economic Development. 

Community Development/Special Programs Grant Administration 

 The Fairfield Inn site remains under construction.

 Five (5) housing projects have been completed under the Pocahontas project, including three (3)

substantial reconstructions and two (2) rehabilitations.

 Six (6) housing projects have been completed under the UNOS project, including three (3) substantial

reconstructions and three (3) rehabilitations.

 A new CDBG Program Administrator is being sought to provide management oversite for the UNOS a

Pocahontas projects.  The County received one (1) response from the Program Administrator RFP and is

in the process of negotiating a contract.

Planning & Zoning 

 The Planning Commission considered the following application at its April meeting:

o Flatfoot Solar Public Facility Application Review 2021-01, Code of Virginia Section 15.2-2232.  The

Planning Commission voted to recommend denial of the application.  The applicant has appealed

the Commission’s decision to the Board of Supervisors.  The Board will consider the appeal at its

May 20, 2021 meeting.

 Thirteen (13) Zoning Applications were reviewed and approved, two (2) for new dwellings, one single-

family and one double-wide manufactured home, two (2) detached sheds, one (1) farm related structure,

one (1) cell tower antenna replacement, one (1) detached sign, one (1) carport, and five (5) for deck/porch

replacement and/or new.

 One (1) new address assignment was issued for new residential construction for Railroad Bed Road.

Erosion & Sediment Control 

 An E&S plan is currently under review for the Virginia Diner in Wakefield for expanding the offices and

warehouse space with parking and associated infrastructure.

 Five (5) E&S projects are active with inspections being made after each rain event.

Consent Agenda - Page 36



Sheriff’s Department 

Monthly Report 

July 22, 2021 

BOS Meeting 

Consent Agenda - Page 37



Consent Agenda - Page 38



Consent Agenda - Page 39



Consent Agenda - Page 40



Consent Agenda - Page 41



Monthly Report 

July 22, 2021 

BOS Meeting 

Consent Agenda - Page 42



Consent Agenda - Page 43



Consent Agenda - Page 44



Consent Agenda - Page 45



Consent Agenda - Page 46



Consent Agenda - Page 47



Consent Agenda - Page 48



BOARD ACTION FORM 

Agenda Item:  Consent Agenda #2.10 

Subject:  District Court COVID-19 Hazard Pay 

Board Meeting Date:  July 22 2021 
============================================================================== 
Summary: The District Court Clerk has requested that the court employees (all but one, are not 
considered county employees for payroll purposes) be provided hazard pay related to COVID-19, 
comparable to county employees receiving this pay in Fall 2020.  The request from the Court 
Clerk is attached for your review and would cover six employees that worked in the office as of 
July 1, 2020 (the date used for consideration for other employees).  As mentioned in the attached 
letter, other counties have provided similar funds through the accounts payable process, rather 
than through payroll. 

In order to consider the use of any remaining CARES funds and to be consistent with the 
application of hazard pay, the Board would need to amend its adopted Infectious Disease (COVID-
19) Preparedness and Response Plan to include District Court, and staff recommends that the
exposure risk determination be considered “low,” consistent with other court and administrative
functions.  Based on this determination, each of the six employees would receive a payment of
$500 (funds would be provided through any outstanding CARES funds or contingency).

Staff recommends amendment to the preparedness and response plan as presented and 
approval of $500 payments to the eligible District Court employees. 

Recommendation:  To approve $500 payment to the eligible District Court employees and amend 
the County’s preparedness and response plan. 

Attachments: (1) Faye Yelverton's (GDC Clerk) Letter, Request for COVID-19 Funds, Dated 4/7/21
(2) Faye Yelverton’s (General District Court Clerk) Letter, CARES Act Funds Follow-

Up, Dated June 1, 2021
============================================================================== 
ACTION:  

MOTION BY:   ___________ SECONDED BY:  ____________ 

Member Aye Nay Member Aye Nay 

Fly ___ ___ W. Jones ___ ___ 
Johnson ___ ___ Seward ___ ___ 
D. Jones ___ ___ Tyler ___ ___ 

White (Tie Breaker)  ___ ___ 

Consent Agenda - Page 49



Consent Agenda - Page 50



Consent Agenda - Page 51



Board of Supervisors 

Susan B. Seward, Chairperson 

Wayne O. Jones., Vice Chairman 

C. Eric Fly, Sr.

Marian D. Johnson 

Debbie P. Jones 

Rufus E. Tyler, Sr. 
Post Office Box 1397  

20135 Princeton Road 

Sussex, Virginia 23884 

  Richard Douglas 

     County Administrator 
  rdouglas@sussexcountyva.gov 

Telephone: (434) 246-1000 

Facsimile: (434) 246-6013 

www.sussexcountyva.gov 

July 15, 2021 

TO: Chair and Board Members 

Sussex County Board of Supervisors 

FROM:   Richard Douglas, County Administrator 

SUBJECT:  Cabin Point CUP Fire and Rescue Payment 

Per the conditional use permit for the solar farm project on Cabin Point Road approved in 2020, the 

County received a payment of $250,000 from the project developer on June 23, 2021.  These funds 

are designated for fire and rescue purposes, and the County Attorney has drafted the following 

motion to appropriate these funds: 

“That the Board appropriates the $250,000 received on June 23, 2021 from Orsted Onshore on 

behalf of Cabin Point Solar Center, LLC, pursuant to Conditional Use Permit #2020-01 and as 

authorized by Va. Code Section 15.2-2288.8, to the Escrow Account for Fire Dept Vehicles in the 

Capital Projects Fund, and that such funds be designated to increasing fire and rescue capacity, the 

need for which is generated, in part, by the Cabin Point Solar Project and associated Battery Storage 

Facilities, including but not limited to new fire and rescue vehicles and any needed capital 

improvements to the fire stations in the County, with specific expenditures of these funds to be 

determined by the County Administrator and Board of Supervisors pursuant to applicable Board 

priorities and County and State procurement requirements.” 

Consent Agenda - Page 52

2.11

mailto:rdouglas@sussexcountyva.gov
http://www.sussexcountyva.gov/
sricks
Highlight



BOARD ACTION FORM 

Agenda Item:   Recognition #3.01 

Subject:   RECOGNITION:  Resolution Recognizing the Late Alice W. Jones 

Board Meeting Date:  July 22 2021 

============================================================================== 
Summary:   Staff received notice that the late Honorable Alice W. Jones passed. Ms. Jones served 
on the Sussex County Board of Supervisors from November 1995 to December 31, 1999 
representing the Waverly district.  She served on the Town Council in Waverly as well.   

She was an LPN and worked at the local Sussex and Surry Health Departments for 24 years. 

Ms. Jones was very active in her church, the Town of Waverly and the Sussex community.  

The Board of Supervisors presents this resolution in recognition of the late Honorable Alice W. 
Jones to express their appreciation for her services in Sussex County, Virginia. 

Attachment:  Copy of the Resolution 

============================================================================== 

ACTION:   N/A 

MOTION BY:   ___________ SECONDED BY:  ____________ 

Member Aye Nay Member Aye Nay 

Fly ___ ___ W. Jones ___ ___ 

Johnson ___ ___ Seward ___ ___ 

D. Jones ___ ___ Tyler ___ ___ 

White (Tie Breaker) ___ ___ 

Recognition - Page 1



RESOLUTION 
OF THE 

SUSSEX COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

IN RECOGNITION 
HONORABLE ALICE JONES 

WHEREAS, the Sussex County Board of Supervisors acknowledges and 
salutes the late Alice W. Jones for her service and dedication as the Waverly 
District representative on the Board of Supervisors for the County of Sussex, 
Virginia; and 

WHEREAS, the Honorable Alice W. Jones was duly elected to the Board 
of Supervisors at the General Elections held in November 1995 to begin her term 
on January 1, 1996 to December 31, 1999; and  

WHEREAS, Ms. Jones also served as a Councilwoman for the Town of 
Waverly; and  

WHEREAS, Ms. Jones received her Licensed Practical Nurse (LPN) 
certification and worked at the Sussex and Surry County Health Departments for 
24 years; and  

WHEREAS, Ms. Jones was a lifelong member of First Baptist Church in 
Waverly, Virginia and served as the first female deacon; and 

WHEREAS, Ms. Jones was very active in the Town of Waverly and Sussex 
County, Virginia community. 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that this resolution be presented to 
the family of the late Alice W. Jones at its July 22, 2021 Board of Supervisors 
meeting in appreciation of her services to Sussex County, Virginia. 

July 22, 2021 

___________________________ ________________________ 
Chair, Board of Supervisors     Clerk, Board of Supervisors 

Recognition - Page 2



BOARD ACTION FORM 

Agenda Item:  Recognition #3.02 

Subject:   Retirement of Sheriff’s Department K-9 Zorro – Sheriff Giles 

Board Meeting Date:  July 22 2021 

============================================================================== 
Summary:  Effective July 1, 2021, Virginia legalized adult possession of up to an ounce of 
marijuana.  As a result, Sheriff Giles notified Administration that even though K-9 Zorro was a 
dual purpose dog, trained in Narcotics (marijuana) and search, the Sheriff’s Department was 
forced into early retirement of Zorro. 

K-9 Zorro, a Belgian Malinois from Poland, came to the Sussex Sheriff’s Department in early 
2018, at 17 months old, to replace the K-9 Rocket who had retired.

Zorro worked with Sergeant Darden in drug enforcement and human tracking for the Sheriff’s 
Department.  Sheriff Giles is requesting  Zorro's partner to adopt him.  After speaking with Sgt. 
Strawn Darden, Sheriff Giles stated that it is the Sergeant’s wishes to keep Zorro as well.  

A copy of the letter from Sheriff Giles with further detail is included in the Board packet. 

Recommendation:  N/A 

Attachment:  Letter from Sheriff E. L. Giles, Sr, dated June 7, 2021 
============================================================================== 

ACTION:     

MOTION BY:   ___________ SECONDED BY:  ____________ 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

Member Aye Nay Member Aye Nay 

Fly ___ ___ W. Jones ___ ___ 

Johnson ___ ___ Seward ___ ___ 

D. Jones ___ ___ Tyler  ___ ___ 

White (Tie Breaker)  ___ ___ 

Recognition - Page 3



Recognition - Page 4



BOARD ACTION FORM 

Agenda Item:  Recognition #3.04 

Subject: Transition to Department of Social Services Advisory Board – Mr. Kevin Massengill, 
Dinwiddie County Administrator 

Board Meeting Date:  July 22 2021 

============================================================================== 
Summary:  Dinwiddie County Administrator Kevin Massengill will present an overview of 
Dinwiddie County’s transition from a DSS Administrative Board to a DSS Advisory Board.  The 
Dinwiddie DSS Advisory Board Chair and DSS Director will also be available to address any 
questions regarding their operations under the advisory board structure.  Dinwiddie County 
administrative and DSS staff have provided invaluable assistance to Sussex County staff over the 
past couple months since the Board voted to change the DSS structure. 

Recommendation:  N/A 

Attachment:    
============================================================================== 

ACTION:   . 

MOTION BY:   ___________ SECONDED BY:  ____________ 

_____________________________________________________________________________________

_____________________________________________________________________________________

_____________________________________________________________________________________

_____________________________________________________________________________________

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

Member Aye Nay Member Aye Nay 

Fly ___ ___ W. Jones ___ ___ 

Johnson ___ ___ Seward ___ ___ 

D. Jones ___ ___ Tyler ___ ___ 

White (Tie Breaker)  ___ ___ 

Recognition - Page 5



BOARD ACTION FORM 

Agenda Item:  Recognition #3.05 

Subject: Virginia Telecommunication Initiative Broadband Grant Opportunity – Mr. Casey Log, 
Prince George Electric Cooperative 

Board Meeting Date:  July 22 2021 

============================================================================== 
Summary:  Casey Logan, Prince George Electric Cooperative CEO, will present an overview of a 
proposed grant application through the Virginia Telecommunication Initiative, to provide county-
wide broadband access for Sussex County.  Mr. Logan will request permission to submit a letter 
of interest for a grant application by the end of July.  Staff has been working with PGEC and the 
Cameron Foundation (who has a significant interest in supporting this proposed project 
financially) to develop the framework and identify necessary funding for the project, and 
recommends moving forward with a grant application.  Mr. Logan will also discuss an agreement 
between Dominion Energy, PGEC, and Sussex County that will be necessary to move forward with 
extending broadband into the Dominion service area. 

Recommendation:  N/A 

Attachment:    
============================================================================== 

ACTION:   . 

MOTION BY:   ___________ SECONDED BY:  ____________ 

_____________________________________________________________________________________

_____________________________________________________________________________________

_____________________________________________________________________________________

_____________________________________________________________________________________

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

Member Aye Nay Member Aye Nay 

Fly ___ ___ W. Jones ___ ___ 

Johnson ___ ___ Seward ___ ___ 

D. Jones ___ ___ Tyler ___ ___ 

White (Tie Breaker)  ___ ___ 

Recognition - Page 6



BOARD ACTION FORM 

Agenda Item:  Action Item #6.01 

Subject:  RFP #2021-04 Public Safety Property/Accident & Health Insurance – Mr. Reid Foster 

Board Meeting Date:   July 22 2021 

============================================================================== 
Summary:  Requests for Proposals were advertised for insurance on the County’s Public Safety 
Property& Casualty Insurance and Accident & Health Insurance. Two Proposals were received. 
One proposal received was from the current provider, Watkins Insurance.  The second proposal 
was received from Chesterfield Insurers. The proposals were opened by Richard, Shilton, and 
Reid. The total amounts from each were as follows: 

Watkins Insurance $66,656.00 
Chesterfield Insurers $49,459.00 

More detail is listed in the attached summary provided by Mr. Foster. 

Recommendation: That the Board approves awarding RFP #2021-04 Chesterfield Insurers 
effective August 1, 2021 and the refund from the current carrier be place back into Fire and 
Rescue budget to cover the cost when we add the three new fire engines and one medic. 

Attachment:  Mr. Reid Foster’s Summary of RFP 2021-04 

============================================================================== 

REQUESTED ACTION:  That the Board hereby approves awarding RFP #2021-04 to Chesterfield 
Insurers effective August 1, 2021; and 

FURTHER RESOLVED that the refund from the current carrier, Watkins Insurance, be placed in 
the Fire and Rescue budget to cover the costs when the three new fire engines and one medic 
are added. 

MOTION BY:   ___________ SECONDED BY:  ____________ 

Member Aye Nay Member Aye Nay 

Fly ___ ___ W. Jones ___ ___ 

Johnson ___ ___ Seward ___ ___ 

D. Jones ___ ___ Tyler  ___ ___ 

   White     ___ ___  (Tie Breaker) 

Action Items - Page 1



OFFICE OF PUBLIC SAFETY 
G. REID FOSTER, JR.
PUBLIC SAFETY COORDINATOR
(804) 834-1305 EXT. 22
EMAIL:  RFOSTER@SUSSEXCOUNTYVA.GOV

COUNTY OF SUSSEX, VIRGINIA 
POST OFFICE BOX 1397 
15080 COURTHOUSE ROAD 
SUSSEX, VIRGINIA 23884 

July 15, 2021 

TO:   Richard Douglas, County Administrator 

FROM: Reid Foster, Jr., Public Safety Coordinator 

SUBJECT: RFP #2021-04 Public Safety Property/Accident & Health Insurance 

The County of Sussex put a RFP for insurance on the County’s Public Safety Property& Casualty 
Insurance and Accident & Health Insurance. There were two Proposals received: One from 
current provider Watkins Insurance and second was from Chesterfield Insurers. The proposals 
were opened by Richard, Shilton Butts and myself. The total amount from each were as follows: 

Watkins Insurance $66,656.00 
Chesterfield Insurers $49,459.00 

I reviewed the two proposals and contacted Chesterfield Insurers to come in to go over there 
proposal. I asked that Mr. Douglas, the Chair and Vice Chairman, Chief Pat Bowden, Chief Wyatt 
Cox of the Sussex County Fire and Rescue Association and myself to review the proposal. Here 
are some of the points that meeting: 

• They are the largest Fire/Rescue Agency in the State
• Specializing in Fire/Rescue Insurance for over 45 years
• Their proposal meets and exceeds current coverage ----Member’s vehicles and equipment

breakdown coverage on portable equipment
• In house Underwriting
• In house Claims
• Multiple points of contact 24/7
• Access to Risk Management
• Hundreds of online training classes
• In state Trainer that is available to county at no cost----EVOC. ATV/UTV, Farm Medic and

Trailering All state approved

It is the recommendation that the County switch Insurance Carriers on Aug. 1, 2021 to 
Chesterfield Insurers and the refund from the current carrier be place back into Fire and Rescue 
budget to cover the cost when we add the three new fire engines and 1 medic. 

Action Items - Page 2



BOARD ACTION FORM 

Agenda Item:  Action Item #6.02 

Subject:  IPR Loan Forgiveness 

Board Meeting Date:  July 22 2021 

============================================================================== 
Summary: Sussex County recently received notice that the Virginia Department of Housing and 
Community Development (DHCD), after extension of a moratorium, made a policy change that 
all monthly home improvement loan payments for work funded by CDBG or IPR be completely 
forgiven.  As noted in the DHCD letter dated May 27, 2021, the policy applies to all past, current 
and future home improvement loans until further notice.  

Staff requests and recommends that the Board concur with this loan forgiveness.  If the Board 
does not agree with the DHCD policy change, then it will need to formally request and justify and 
exemption. 

Furthermore, staff recommends that the Housing Oversight Board be directed to develop 
administrative guidelines so that these loan repayment funds (approximately $60,000) can be 
used by DSS for low-income home improvement projects as needed up to $5,000. 

Recommendation:  To concur with the DHCD loan forgiveness and direct the Housing Oversight 
Board to develop administrative guidelines for use of their funds for low income home 
improvements. 

Attachments (2): Amanda Healy Letters, Community Development Block Grant Recipients, IPR 
Flex Program Grantees and Regional Administrators, Subject:  Housing 
Rehabilitation Loan Forgiveness Dated March 19, and May 27, 2021 

============================================================================== 

ACTION:   . 

MOTION BY:   ___________ SECONDED BY:  ____________ 

Member Aye Nay Member Aye Nay 

Fly ___ ___ W. Jones ___ ___ 

Johnson ___ ___ Seward ___ ___ 

D. Jones ___ ___ Tyler ___ ___ 

White (Tie Breaker)  ___ ___ 

Action Items - Page 3



MEMORANDUM 

TO: Community Development Block Grant Recipients, and IPR Flex Program Grantees 

and Regional Administrators  

FROM: Amanda Healy  

Associate Director 

SUBJECT: Housing Rehabilitation Loan Forgiveness 

DATE: May 27, 2021 

Our agency is making a change in policy for all monthly home improvement loan payments for work 

funded by CDBG or IPR to be completely forgiven.  This policy applies to all past, current and future 

home improvement loans until further notice.   

Please contact the Community Development Specialist assigned to work with your project if there are 

questions or comments.   

Stay safe and let us know how we can help you continue to move forward. 

c: Jay Grant, DHCD 

Pam Kestner, DHCD  

Tonya Thomas, DHCD 

Matt Weaver, DHCD 

Action Items - Page 4



Action Items - Page 5



BOARD ACTION FORM 
 
Agenda Item:  Action Item #6.02 
 
Subject:   Sheriff’s Office Staff Increases 
 
Board Meeting Date:  July 22 2021 
   
============================================================================== 
Summary:  Administration received a request from Sheriff Giles to be placed on the agenda to 
discuss three employees (two sworn deputies and a part-time civilian) not receiving the five 
percent increase. 
 
Sheriff Giles would also like to discuss the employees under the Waverly Police Services 
Agreement not receiving the five percent increase as well. 
 
Recommendation:   
 
Attachments (if any):  Copy of Email Request from Sheriff’s Office    
 
============================================================================== 

 

ACTION:   . 
 
MOTION BY:   ___________ SECONDED BY:  ____________     
 
_____________________________________________________________________________________

_____________________________________________________________________________________

_____________________________________________________________________________________

_____________________________________________________________________________________

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

 
Member Aye Nay    Member Aye Nay 
 
Fly  ___ ___    W. Jones ___ ___ 
 
Johnson ___ ___    Seward ___ ___ 
 
D. Jones ___ ___    Tyler  ___ ___ 
 

White (Tie Breaker)  ___ ___ 
 

 


	#1 7 22 2021 agenda
	#2.01 Minutes
	#2.01-1 jointmtgminutes.5.3.2021 (002)
	ADOPTION OF AGENDA AMENDMENTS:
	MOTION TO ENTER PUBLIC HEARINGS:
	ENTER Public Hearing Item (7)(a) Zoning Amendment #2021-01,  Mike’s Auto & Truck Repair, LLC, applicant
	1) STAFF REPORT PRESENTATION
	ON MOTION OF COMMISSIONER EDMOND, seconded by COMMISSIONER KING and carried: RESOLVED that the Planning Commission forward Mike’s Auto & Truck Repair, LLC, Zoning Amendment #2021-01 to the Board of Supervisors for approval.
	ON MOTION OF SUPERVISOR SEWARD, seconded by SUPERVISOR TYLER and carried: RESOLVED that the Board of Supervisors approve Mike’s Auto & Truck Repair, LLC, Zoning Amendment #2021-01.
	ENTER Public Hearing Item (7)(c) Conditional Use Permit Application #2021-01, Shands Energy Center, LLC, applicant
	2) STAFF REPORT PRESENTATION
	ON MOTION OF SUPERVISOR SEWARD and carried: RESOLVED that the Board of Supervisors approve Shands Energy Center, LLC, Conditional Use Permit Application.

	#2.01-2 5 20  2021 Regular BOS meeting minutes
	#2.01-3 6 2 2021 Special meeting minutes

	#2.02 Warrants and Vouchers
	#2.02-1 Warrants and Vouchers BOS FY21 071521
	#2.02-2 Warrants and Vouchers BOS FY21 May
	BOS FY21 June.pdf
	JUNE 18 2020



	#2.03-2.11 Consent Agenda
	#2.03-1 Treas Report June21
	Treas Report June21 1
	Treas Report June21 2

	#2.03-2 Treasurers Report May21
	#2.04-1 Financial Update June21
	#2.04-2 Financial Update
	#2.05-1 Public Works
	#2.05-2 June 2021 Report
	#2.05-3 May 2021 BOS Report
	#2.05-4 June 2021 Tonnage Report
	#2.05-5 May 2021 Tonnage Report
	#2.06-1 Public Safety
	#2.06-2 Public Safety Monthly Report
	#2.07-1 Planning Department
	#2.07-2 PLANNING April Monthly Report
	#2.08-1 Sheriff's Dept. 2020
	#2.08-2 Sheriff's June Report
	#2.08-3 Sheriff's May Report
	#2.09-1 Social Services
	#2.09-2 DSS Monthly Performance Reports 7.2021
	#2.09-3 Quarterly Local Agency Dashboard
	#2.10-1 District Court COVID-19 Hazard Pay
	#2.10-2 Request for One Time Bonus
	#2.10-3 Cares Act Funds Follow-Up
	#2.11 Fire and Rescue Payment - Cabin Point Solar

	#3 Recognition
	#3.01-1 RESOLUTION ALICE W. JONES
	#3.01-2 RESOLUTION Alice Jones (Board Meeting)
	#3.02-2 Ltr from SO
	#3.04-1 Introduction of New Staff
	#3.05-1 VTI Broadband Grant Opportunity

	#6 Action Items
	#6.01-2 RFP #2021-04
	#6.02-1 IPR Loan Forgiveness
	#6.02-2 Policy Change Forgivable Loans for CDBG and IPR AH3 (002)
	#6.02-3 img-210715092736-0001

	#9.01-1 Sheriff's Request



